
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

 
Date: MONDAY, 14 OCTOBER 2013 

Time: 3.00pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy John Tomlinson (Chairman) 

Deputy Catherine McGuinness (Deputy Chairman) 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Brian McMaster (External Member) 
Keith Salway (External Member) 
 

 
 
Enquiries: Matthew Pitt  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1425 
matthew.pitt@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

John Barradell 
Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 

INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 Minutes of the Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board meeting held on 15 

January 2013.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 Report of the Chamberlain.  
 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 28) 

 
6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
 excluded from the meeting for the following items, on the grounds that they involve 
 the likely disclosure of Exempt Information, as defined in Part 1, of Schedule 12A of 
 the Local Government Act. 
 
9. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
 Non-public minutes of the Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board meeting held 

on 15 January 2013.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 29 - 32) 

 
10. RISK REGISTER UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer.  
 For Information 
 (Pages 33 - 92) 

 
11. TICKETING UPDATE 
 Report of the Director of Audiences and Development. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 93 - 98) 

 



3 
 

12. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE 

 
13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT WHILST 

THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



RISK COMMITTEE OF THE BARBICAN CENTRE BOARD 
Tuesday, 15 January 2013  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board held at 

Guildhall on Tuesday, 15 January 2013 at 2.00 pm 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Catherine McGuinness (Chairman) 
John Tomlinson (Deputy Chairman) 
Brian McMaster 
Keith Salway 
 
Officers: 
Mathew Lawrence - Town Clerk's  

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk’s 

Paul Nagle  
Sabir Ali  
Sandeep Dwesar 

- Chamberlain’s 
- Chamberlain’s 
- Barbican Centre 

Nigel Walker - Barbican Centre 

Michael Dick - Barbican Centre  

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Nick Kenyon and Vivienne Littlechild 
 

2. MEMBER DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT 
OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA  
There were no declarations 
 

3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary of the Barbican Risk Committee of 21 May 
2012 and the inquorate meeting of 11 October 2012 were approved. 
 
Matters arising 
 
The Chairman asked if the outstanding actions list could appear in both parts of 
the agenda, when appropriate.  The Town Clerk advised that, on this occasion, 
all items on the list were in the public domain. 
 
Members noted that the recommendations from the Health and Safety, 
Construction, Design and Management (CDM) Audit had been rescheduled for 
completion by the end of January 2013.  The Central Audit and Risk 
Management Committee had received an update at its December meeting.   
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS  
Members noted that, following the inquorate meeting on 11 October 2012, 
Vivienne Littlechild had been appointed to the Barbican Risk Committee.  The 
Board had recommended a further appointment,  which was likely to be the ex-
officio Finance Committee appointment to the Barbican Centre Board.  This 
appointment could not be confirmed at present as the current Member had 
recently become an Alderman.  The Chairman confirmed that all other actions 
had either been discharged or would be on today’s agenda.   
 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
This report provided Members with an update on the progress of Internal Audit 
reviews undertaken at the Barbican Centre since the last report in September 
2012.   
 
Members noted that two of the remaining three reviews in the 2012/13 Audit 
Plan had been delayed, due to the recent departure of the ICT Senior Auditor.  
Members praised the competence of this officer and noted that the new 
appointment would be in post in February. A detailed box office/ IT application 
review had been cancelled because the application would be replaced in 
2013/14.  Members had a particular interest in this area and asked to be briefed 
and assured of basic controls, prior to drafting the specification.   The Head of 
Audit and Risk Management advised that Box Office processes are currently 
being reviewed as part of a separate audit review which is underway.  
Following this, the Committee would receive a full report.  Some additional audit 
work would be undertaken on the current Box Office application, to provide the 
assurance requested by Members, and this would be added to the audit plan.   
 
In respect of the amber recommendation from the retail outlets audit, Members 
noted that management reports from stock control were being developed and 
nearly all the recommendations had now been implemented. 
 
Members asked if the previous audit plan could be circulated.  Officers advised 
that the current plan would have a similar number of work days, was very 
flexible and Members were invited to comment on it.  Finally, Members noted a 
correction to the plan in that an ICT audit would be undertaken annually.   
 
RECEIVED 
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
The Chairman of the Barbican Centre Board had received a letter from 
Buckingham Palace complementing the Centre on the security arrangements in 
place for the recent Queen’s visit.  Members asked for the Security Team to be 
congratulated on this commendation.   
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 
 

Page 2



8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

RESOLVED, that 
 
Under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1, of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act.   
 

9. MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the Barbican Risk Committee of 21 May 2012 and 
the inquorate meeting of 11 October 2012 were approved. 
 

10. RISK UPDATE  
This report updated Members of the risk management systems in place at the 
Barbican, the significant risks and measures for their mitigation. 
RECEIVED  
 

11. CONCERT HALL GOODS LIFT  
Members received a report of the Buildings Director. 
RECEIVED 
  

12. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions 
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no items of urgent business.   

 
The meeting ended at 3.30 pm 
 
 

Chairman 
 
Contact Officer: Julie Mayer 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1410 
julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

Outstanding actions 2013/14 
 

 

 

 
Action 

 

 
Notes/Progress to date 

Officer responsible To be completed/ 
progressed to next 

stage  

Vacancy on the Risk 
Committee 

Members recommended that the Board appoint two 
Members and that one of these might be the Finance 
Committee’s ex-officio Member of the Board.  This would 
mitigate against future risks of the Risk Committee being 
inquorate. 

 

Town Clerk 

(Refer to Board on 
28 November) 

Appointed Vivienne 
Littlechild at the 
Barbican Centre Board 
in November. 

A further appointment 
was recommended by 
the Chairman.   

CDM – Construction Design 
Management Legislation 2007 

1. The Chairman suggested that CDM be considered 
for inclusion in the Barbican’s Risk Register.   

2. The Chairman suggested that this also be reported 
to the central Audit and Risk Management 
Committee. 

 

Head of Audit 

 

1. Complete. 

2. CDM audit report 
was reported to Audit 
& Risk management 
Committee on 12th 
Dec. 

Hot Water and Heating 1. Update to the next meeting SD (Chief 
Operating and 
Financial Officer  

 

 

Goods lift Next Risk Committee to receive a report on the life 
expectancy of the lift. 

Ensure that Orchestras etc are using the loading bays 

MD (Operations 
and Buildings 
Director) 

Discharged on Agenda 
for 15 January 2013. 

A
genda Item

 4

P
age 5



Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

Outstanding actions 2013/14 
 

 

Risk Register Members asked to see the report to the Central Audit and 
Risk Management on the City’s response to a terrorist 
attack or major incident so that its content can be 
discussed at the next Barbican Risk Committee 

Head of Audit Report circulated. 

Frequency of reporting the 
Risk Register 

Full risk register to be included on the Risk Committee 
agenda annually from now on (next time in Oct 13), but a 
risk update report will continue to be submitted to each 
meeting showing red ‘significant risks’ in this report, plus 
details of any new or changed risks.  

NW/SD Copies of previous risk 
report to be tabled at 
the meeting. 

Air handling units in the new 
cinemas 

A resident had queried the means by which the air-
handling units were fixed to the structure.   

MD (Operations 
and Buildings 
Director) 

City Surveyors 
investigated and there 
are no problems. 

RECOMMENDED TO 
CLOSE 

 
 
Protocols in the event of the HM 
Queen’s Death 
 
 
 
 

To check the protocols in the event of the Queens death with 
the Remembrancer’s Department.  

TC  

 
 
LLW Protest Policing  
 
 
 
 

A Member was going to raise the issue at the June/July Police 
Committee meeting.  
 
TC/Member to seek outcome 

TC/Member  

 
 
Ticking and Flying System Update 

Director of Audiences and Development to provide an update 
on the ticketing/CRM. 
 

LT (Audiences and 
Development 
Director), SD 

 

P
age 6



Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

Outstanding actions 2013/14 
 

 

to be provided by Mid-Aug 
 
 
 
 

Chief Operating and Financial Officer to provide update on 
Flying System Progress.  
 
Both by Mid-August 

 
Internal Audit  
 

Discussion was to take place between Sandeep Dwesar (SD) 
and Nikki Cornwell regarding Audit timings.  
 
 
SD asked Internal Audit to look at Barbican International 
Enterprises due to growth in business and increased risk 
 
 
SD to discuss with Internal Audit what the expected outcomes 
of the Value Framework were. 
 

SD/NK (Chamb.) 
 
SD/JM (Audit) 
 
SD/JM 

 

 

P
age 7



P
age 8

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 14th October 2013 

Subject:  

Internal Audit Update Report 

 
 

Public 

 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

For Information 

 

 

 
Summary 

The purpose of this report is to provide your sub-committee with an update on the 
progress of Internal Audit reviews undertaken at the Barbican Centre since the last 
report made in June 2013. Work on the 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan has now been 
completed, (a Schedule of the 2012/13 Internal Audit Work plan is included within 
Appendix 1). Work has commenced on the 2013/14 Internal Audit Plan for which a 
minor spot check review of cash collection has been completed to date (Schedule of 
Internal Audit Work 2013/14 Appendix 2). 
 
Stocks and Stores review: Internal Audit can provide substantial assurance 
concerning the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls exercised by the 
Barbican Centre’s Stores management team. There are a large number of 
recommendations stemming from this review, but these have been given a “green” 
rating and do not relate to any significant control issues.  
 
Annual ICT Strategy and Security review: The ICT practices were judged to be 
adequately controlled. A well-defined ICT strategy exists, with all the important ICT 
aspects covered, resulting in the strategy that should meet the operational 
requirements of the Barbican Centre. No significant control issues were identified, 
although some findings, related to the introduction of disaster recovery scenario 
planning, warranted prompt initiation. 
 
Box Office Ticket System (ENTA): Internal audit can provide the Risk Committee of 
the Barbican Centre Board substantial assurance in the current ENTA application 
and the associated procedures and it was not necessary to recommend any control 
improvements. Internal Audit work established that the ENTA system provides 
considerable functionality and has been very stable since its implementation in 
2001. 
 
Business Continuity Management System (BCMS): Overall, the BCMS was found to 
be sound and, most importantly, the plan(s) would be operable in the event of a real 
incident. Furthermore, this opinion has been reinforced by the Directors and 
Managers, who represent the ‘Emergency Management Team’; their views being 
elicited through questionnaires and interviews.  The review did, however, identify, a 
number of areas were improvement can be made. A draft report has been issued 
and is currently under consideration by management. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



 
Cash collection, Security & Banking: The finance office’s control is satisfactory, audit 
trails are adequate to support the transfer of cash from the original site (such as the 
cinemas and library) to the cashiers and supporting documentation is available and 
complete.  A few areas for improvement were identified concerning the audit trail for 
the reconciliation process, which warranted prompt action and were rated as 
‘Amber’ priority. 
 
It has been necessary to defer two full reviews until the next financial year (Business 
Events and Interim Valuations), and one spot check review until later in 2013/14 
(Debt Management). It is stressed that the remaining audit work schedule for the 
Barbican Centre in 2013/14 provides good coverage, and given the amount of work 
undertaken in 2012/13 and 2013/14 to date, your sub-committee can place a high 
level of reliance on the assurance reported to date. 
 
At the time of reporting, there are two open amber priority recommendations open 
relating to the recent Barbican ICT review which are due to be completed by the end 
of November 2013. 
 
Recommendation 

• Members are asked to note the work that internal audit have undertaken, the 
plans for the current year and offer any observations on the work undertaken. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
 
1. This report provides an update on progress being made in finalising the 2012/13 

Internal Audit Plan for the Barbican Centre, and the progress made in 
undertaking the 2013/14 plan to date.  Four full reviews have been completed 
since the June 2013 update report to your sub-committee and one spot check 
review; details of the outcome of these reviews are included below. Where 
‘Amber’ rated recommendations have been made, related to findings that 
require prompt action, an update has been sought from the Centre on their 
implementation status. Other ‘Green’ rated recommendations are subject to 
implementation at a later date, since these issues do not pose a significant risk 
to the control environment. These recommendations are subject to a follow-up 
review six to twelve months after the completion of the audit review to which 
they relate. 

 
Internal Audit Plan Completion 2012/13 
 
2. Work on the 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan has now been completed. There were 

seven full reviews undertaken within the year and the four of these have been 
completed, with recommendations agreed by Barbican Centre management, 
since the June update report to your sub-committee; summaries of the outcome 
of these reviews are included below. No significant control issues were identified 
during the course of these reviews, although some findings, related to the 

Page 10



introduction of disaster recovery scenario planning, warranted prompt initiation.   
A final schedule of the 2012/13 plan completion status is included in Appendix 
1. 

 
Stocks and Stores 
 

Green Assurance   
 
3. The Barbican Centre’s Engineering Department administers the general day to 

day maintenance of the Centre’s buildings. The stocks form part of the Building 
and Engineering Repairs budget for the Centre, stores expenditure within that 
budget is in the region of £25,000 (2013/14 prices). A software database called 
“Agility” is used for recording all stock movements.  

 
4. The purpose of this audit exercise was to evaluate the adequacy of procedures 

and existing arrangements for all aspects of stock control. This included 
treatment of write-offs and disposal of obsolete items. The physical security of 
the stores was examined, together with the accuracy and completeness of stock 
records (held on database software). Compliance with the City’s Financial 
Regulations was also examined. In addition, consideration was given to the 
value for money demonstrated by providing this type of in-house stores facility. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
5. Internal Audit can provide substantial assurance concerning the adequacy and 

effectiveness of internal controls exercised by the Barbican Centre’s Stores 
management team. Whilst there are a large number of recommendations 
stemming from this review, these do not relate to any significant control issues. 
Details of these areas of improvement are provided below. 

 
6. There are no written procedures for the administration, operation and 

management of the stores. Staff may not be following appropriate procedures 
as a consequence. In addition, the Storeman was not aware of the City’s 

AREA Red 
Recommendations 

 

Amber 
Recommendations 

 

Green 
Recommendations 

 
Purchasing 0 0 1 

Procedures 0 0 2 

Security 0 0 2 

Stores Administration 0 0 5 

Write-Offs & 
Disposals 

0 0 1 

Issues & Returns 0 0 3 

Record Keeping 0 0 3 

TOTAL 0 0 17 

AGREED 0 0 17 

Page 11



Financial Regulations. It was agreed that written procedures would be prepared 
and access to Financial Regulations given to all storekeeping staff. 

 
7. A number of weaknesses were identified in respect of stock record 

maintenance: delivery notes were not being consistently retained; the requisition 
forms were not being retained in accordance with the City's Records Retentions 
policy; a separate log for recording returned items to the store was not in place; 
returns were not always witnessed or verified; and there was no evidence to 
support the receipt of the items when the stores are closed. These issues have 
now been resolved.  

 
8. Independent spot checks to confirm the accuracy of information contained within 

the stock database system ‘Agility’ were not carried out regularly each year. In 
addition, reconciliations between the financial balance on the stock record 
database system and CBIS were not being undertaken, and the sale of obsolete 
items via the City of London Procurement Service had not been considered as 
an option for the disposal of items. 

 
9. It was noted that there is no CCTV surveillance at the rear of the store and no 

absence cover for the storeman whilst on leave. It was agreed that surveillance 
issues will be resolved by 30th October 2013, but accepted that due to budget 
constraints there is no scope to employ additional storeman. More flexibility, 
however, of existing staff members duties will be considered. 

 
10. An absence of division of duties was revealed when stock checks are 

undertaken and some sundry items of stock are not included within these 
checks. The Head of Engineering agreed to involve another member of staff in 
all future stocktakes and these will include all stock items.  

 
11. Stock discrepancies following stock takes are not reported to the Head of 

Engineering as a matter of protocol. As such, stock variances amounting to 
£13,173 were not fully investigated prior to submitting the amount to the Finance 
Department for write-off. Some £10,539 of the variance was subsequently 
explained and adjusted following detailed audit examinations, leaving a balance 
of £2,634 yet to be identified. £13,173 was written off in the 2011/12 financial 
year by the Chamberlain’s Department and therefore adjustments, as a result of 
these audit findings and recommendations, will be reflected in the current 
financial year 2013/14. 

 
 
12. The Barbican Centre’s Call Centre raises orders based on requests they receive 

from departments for in-house repairs and maintenance services. It was found 
that the Engineering Call Centre 'close down' works orders too early without 
prior notification being received by the Engineering Department that the works 
have been fully completed or that the full costs have been allocated to the 
works. Consequently, departments are not always charged the full cost of the 
works. 

 
13. Finally, the Engineering Department Manager has explained that a constant 

VFM assessment of the store is undertaken, by remaining focused on the needs 

Page 12



of the Centre. It is felt that in view of the way in which the stores strategy is 
flexed in accordance with business needs, no specific value for money project is 
warranted. 

 
14. Fieldwork was concluded in spring 2013 with the draft report issued in June 

2013. The management response was provided in July 2013, with the final 
report issued in August 2013 following confirmation of an agreed management 
action plan.  

 
15. Seventeen green priority recommendations have been agreed. Management 

have reported that fourteen recommendations were implemented with 
immediate affect or by the end of July. The remaining three priority 
recommendations will be implemented by the end of October 2013. 

 
Annual IS Strategy and Security Review 

Green Assurance  
 
16. The responsibility of the ICT provisions rests with the Barbican Centre, where a 

dedicated Information Technology (IT) team exists.  There is a growing 
relationship with the Guildhall School Music and Drama (GSMD) ICT team, 
including project sharing.  

 
17. The previous Barbican ICT internal audit resulted in 39 recommendations (three 

red, eight amber, and 28 green), all have now been addressed, making the 
current ICT configuration more secure, with appropriate processes and policies.   

 
18. The table below provides a summary of the areas reviewed by internal audit; as 

a result, three amber and three green priority recommendations were agreed 
with the ICT Manager. 

 
 

AREA Red 
Recommendations 

 

Amber 
Recommendations 

 

Green 
Recommendations

 

Total 

ICT Strategy 0 0 0 0 

Management 
Responsibility  

0 0 0 0 

Configuration & 
Infrastructure 

0 0 0 0 

Logical 
Security/Access 
Controls 

0 0 0 0 

Operational & 
Housekeeping 
Procedures  

0 0 1 1 

Resilience  0 3 2 5 

TOTAL 0 3 3 6 

AGREED 0 3 3 6 

Page 13



 
19. The ICT practices were judged to be adequately controlled. A well-defined ICT 

strategy exists, with all the important ICT aspects covered, resulting in the 
strategy that should meet the operational requirements of the Barbican Centre. 
Responsibilities are clearly defined and assigned with the management 
structure being appropriate for the scale of operations. The area of configuration 
and infrastructure as well as logical security was found to be well controlled, 
with suitable policies in place, including standards comparable to the leading 
industry practice. The third party connection policy is also well defined, and the 
procedure adequately documented, and controlled.  

    
20. Operational and housekeeping procedures were found to be adequate, with one 

minor recommendation made to perform regular monitoring of the computer 
room physical access logs, ensuring that they are completed, and there are no 
unusual access events. 

 
21. Resilience is in place, with the implementation of the last ICT audit 

recommendations, which included introducing an additional 
firewall.  Additionally, security has been improved, with the introduction of 
annual external penetration tests. However, the Disaster Recovery (DR) 
arrangements need improving in a number of areas. For instance, the 
introduction of Disaster Recovery scenario plans. The IT team is aware of the 
areas requiring attention and a project is underway to investigate and remedy 
deficient areas. 

 
22. Three amber and two green priority recommendations related to resilience have 

been agreed by Barbican Centre Management. The three amber risk areas seek 
to mitigate the threat of the total loss of the computer room by the introduction of 
Disaster Recovery scenario plans, carrying out user testing of a new remote DR 
solution (once introduced), and ensuring that all IT staff involved in the DR plan 
have access to DR plans from outside the Barbican ICT office environment.  

 
23. The amber priority recommendations were agreed with the recommendation 

relating to ensuring access to the DR plan information already implemented. A 
project is underway to address the remaining two amber priority 
recommendations by end of November 2013. Three green priority 
recommendations have been also been accepted, with all recommendations 
agreed to be implemented by December 2013. 

 
24. Fieldwork was concluded in June 2013 and the audit report issued in July 2013. 

The management action plan was confirmed in July 2013 and the audit 
subsequently finalised. 

 
25. In line with the City of London Risk Management expectations, it is suggested 

that Service Committee Chairman should discuss this report with the relevant 
Chief Officer and seek assurances about the implementation of the 
recommendations, particularly where there are ‘Red’ or ‘Amber’ priority 
recommendations identified for implementation.   

 
 

Page 14



Box Office Ticket System (ENTA) 

Green Assurance  
 
26. The Box Office Ticket system is a critical operation issuing in the region of 1.4 

million tickets a year contributing to the Centre’s overall income of over £18 
million (2013/14 prices). The Box Office operates from 9:00 am until 9:30 pm, 
seven days per week for 363 days each year, and the system is available on-
line 365 days per year. 

 
27. The objectives of this review were to establish and assess: - 
 

• Strategy. 

• Management responsibility. 

• Configuration.  

• Logical security. 

• Operational procedures. 

• Resilience. 

• System development. 
 
28. Internal audit can provide the Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

substantial assurance in the current ENTA application and the associated 
procedures. The ENTA system provides considerable functionality and has 
been very stable since its implementation in 2001. 

  
29. An agreed system development methodology is being applied and three new 

systems are currently being considered (including ENTA). A contract project 
manager has been appointed for the Ticketing system project with an expected 
implementation of early 2015.  

 
 
Issues to include in the development process 
 
30. Few material aspects were identified with only one relating directly to ENTA 

regarding password characteristics. The current ENTA password format does 
not offer sufficient complexity (i.e. upper case, lower case, numeric and non-
alpha numeric), offering only one numeric and one alpha requirement. The IT 
team were already aware of this. 

 
31. The other main issue concerns the Barbican Centres Disaster Recovery Plan 

and the IT team are aware of this issue and are currently addressing it. 
 
32. The Internal Audit forwarded the ‘CoL Internal Audit Systems Development – 

Security & Audit requirements’ (December 2012) and commented on the draft 
specification (January 2013). These two documents addressed a number of 
pertinent issues identified as part of this review. 

 
33. No audit recommendations have resulted from this review and therefore no 

formal response was required.  
 

Page 15



Business Continuity Management System 

Green Assurance  
 

 
 
34. The objectives of this review were to: - 
 

• Evaluate the governance arrangements including the reviewing, reporting and 
responsibilities. 

• Evaluate the formal elements and documentation of the BCMS including the --
-Business Impact Analysis and the Business Continuity Plan. 

• Evaluate the BCMS processes including training and testing. 

• Evaluate everyday operational issues that could cause reputational damage 
including engineering/maintenance failures, fire, medical issues and security.  

 
35. The internal audit review benchmark has been an amalgam of standards 

including ISO 27301 (formerly BS25999), City of London (CoL) Security & 
Contingency Planning guidelines and general leading practice.  This has been 
tailored to the needs of the Barbican’s objectives and risks where, as a 
cultural/commercial concern, one of the major impacts is reputational damage. 

 
36. Overall, the BCMS was found to be sound and, most importantly, the plan(s) 

would be operable in the event of a real incident. Furthermore, this opinion has 
been reinforced by the Directors and Managers, who represent the ‘Emergency 
Management Team’; their views being elicited through questionnaires and 
interviews.  The review did, however, identify, a number of areas were 
improvement can be made, and as a resulted in eleven recommendations (one 
amber and ten green). 

    
 

AREA Red 
Recommendation
s 

 

Amber 
Recommendation
s 

 

Green 
Recommendations 

 

Total 

Governance 0 0 3 3 

BCP & 
Business 
Impact Analysis 

0 1 3 4 

Testing 0 0 1 1 

Training 0 0 1 1 

Salvage 
Strategy 

0 0 1 1 

Public 
Relations/ 
Communication 

0 0 1 1 

TOTAL 0 1 10 11 

AGREED 0 1 10 11 

Page 16



37. The governance arrangements were generally conducted properly with the 
Security Manager having a high level of understanding, both of the Barbican’s 
operation and business continuity priorities. Many of the expected BCMS 
requirements are in place, most importantly a workable plan and adequate staff 
support.  An area highlighted for consideration is formalised reporting to 
committee and establishing a documented meeting schedule with Directors and 
Managers for them to review their Departmental BCPs. There were two issues 
for consideration regarding development:  a salvage strategy; and PR/Media 
response plan. The major issue is access to the BCPs (both central and 
departmental) in the event of an incident. A number of key staff rely on access 
via the computer held version (i.e. “P:/ drive”). If, however, the incident has 
affected the IT computer room, a remote access connection may not be 
possible. Furthermore, reliance is placed on being able to access a device to 
make the connection in the first instance.  

 
38. The formal elements and documentation of the BCMS, including the Business 

Impact Analysis (BIA) and the Business Continuity Plan were reviewed. The last 
comprehensive BIA conducted (both corporate and departments) was for the 
Olympics (April 2012) and while it is recognised that BIAs are viewed annually, a 
recommendation has been given to make this a more formalised process, 
including central review. A similar recommendation was made regarding BCPs. 

 
39. Testing has occurred (both planned and by virtue of ad hoc incidents), but it 

could be improved if organized on a regular and formal basis, and a 
recommendation has been made with examples of the tests that could be 
performed. 

 
40. Training has occurred and many of the managers believe that this has been 

sufficient for their need.  Furthermore, the induction course includes aspects of 
BCP, and a number of staff have attended high level continuity courses whilst 
employed by other organisations. Even so, a recommendation has been made 
to put in place training on a more regular and formalised basis. 

 
41. The everyday operational issues that could cause reputational damage were 

reviewed, and the outcome was reassuring. Many issues occur on an ad hoc 
basis (e.g. electrical/mechanical failures, PR incidents, industrial action, security 
issues and  performance cancelations) and these have all been handled well 
with both proactive forethought and employing existing procedures. Issues that 
may be considered outside the standard BCMS, but are important to the 
Barbican on a reputational basis, examples of which include dealing with a fire 
incident, or personal injuries have been well considered.  
 

42. It should be noted that this review is current at draft report stage. Whilst ICT 
Management have accepted all the recommendations in principal, a final report, 
together with implementation dates for recommendations, has yet to be agreed 
with the Managing Director. This internal audit report is due for finalisation by the 
end of November 2013 following which a Member Briefing will be issued. 

 
 
 

Page 17



Internal Audit Plan Completion 2013/14 
 
43. Work has commenced on the 2013/14 Internal Audit Plan. A minor spot check 

review of cash collection has been completed to date. This review has resulted 
in two amber rated recommendations which require prompt attention, in respect 
of income reconciliations. It should be noted that due to a number of resourcing 
issues faced by the Internal Audit Section, including the retirement of a Senior 
Auditor, and re-allocation of resources to enable higher priority special 
investigation work to be undertaken, it has been necessary to defer two full 
reviews until the next financial year (Business Events and Interim Valuations), 
and one spot check review until later in 2013/14 (Debt Management). 
 

44. Additional interim internal audit resource is being procured and should be in 
place from the beginning of November to bring the internal audit plan back on 
track, and will be used to supplement full time auditor resources when staff 
turnover arises. Recruitment of two permanent senior internal auditors is already 
well advanced with interviews arranged for week commencing 13th October. 
The internal audit coverage of the Barbican is regularly risk assessed, and is 
balanced with other priority areas of internal audit coverage in other City of 
London Departments.  

 

45. It is stressed that the remaining audit work schedule for the Barbican Centre in 
2013/14 provides good coverage, and given the amount of work undertaken in 
2012/13 and 2013/14 to date, your sub-committee can place a high level of 
reliance on the assurance reported to date. A revised schedule of the 2013/14 
plan completion status is included in Appendix 2. 

 
 
Cash collection, security and banking  

Amber Assurance  
 

 
46. The finance office’s control of collecting, recording and banking cash is 

satisfactory.  Audit trails are adequate to support the transfer of cash from the 
original site (such as the cinemas and library) to the cashiers and supporting 
documentation is available and complete.  Cashing up of a sample of receipts 
from these sites did not identify any variances.  Furthermore, the banking 
arrangements are sufficient to ensure that cash is held on site for a limited 
period of time and within the established insurance arrangements.  The broader 
security arrangements, such as the number of officers who have access to the 
cash, the safes used and the installed alarm system, are also satisfactory.  In 
addition, separation of duties is appropriate. 
 

AREA Red 
Recommendations 

 

Amber 
Recommendations 

 

Green 
Recommendations

 

Total 

Reconciliations 0 2 0 2 

TOTAL 0 2 0 2 

AGREED 0 2 0 2 

Page 18



47. A few areas for improvement were, however, identified.  In particular, the audit 
trail for the reconciliation process requires improvement.  Evidence of 
reconciliations being conducted is not available to demonstrate that all cash 
received is banked; although it should be noted that limited sample testing 
conducted by Internal Audit did not identify any variances. In addition, the 
cashiers’ reconciliation document, used to reconcile cash received and cash 
banked, is retained electronically and is accessible to a number of officers, 
including the officer responsible for reconciliation to the bank.  As a result, the 
risk of manipulating the recorded amount of cash received requires mitigating 
action. 

 
48. A sum of cash was observed on an empty desk at the time of the visit, which 

should have been secured when not being counted, and the safe combination 
has not been changed for approximately two years.  Discussion with staff 
identified that G4S (the outsourced company responsible for banking cash) do 
not visit the office every day as stipulated by contract or the finance office is 
empty when they visit, although these occasions are rare, resulting in cash not 
being banked for two days.  Finally, although security measures are generally 
satisfactory, the key to the safe was in plain sight on the day of the visit.  These 
issues have been discussed with the Head of Finance and, considering the 
overall adequacy of control environment, including the restricted access to the 
Finance Office, it was agreed that these were not regular occurrences and 
constituted minor lapses in normal practice. Therefore, no formalised 
recommendations have been raised for these areas. 

 
 
Recommendations Follow-up 
 
49. All main audit reviews are subject to a formal audit follow-up exercise to 

evaluate the progress of management in the implementation of 
recommendations between six to twelve months after the main audit. These 
reviews will look to verify the evidence of action taken and may involve some 
transaction testing where compliance issues were a concern in the original audit 
review. Follow-up reviews will be undertaken later in 2013/14.  

50. In addition to this formal audit follow-up process, internal audit obtains status 
updates from recommendation owners on a quarterly basis for any open red or 
amber priority recommendations. At the time of reporting, there are two open 
amber priority actions relating to the recent Barbican ICT review which are due 
to be completed by the end of November 2013.  

Conclusions 
 
51. The full Internal Audit plan for 2012/13 has been delivered and work is 

progressing on the completion of the 2013/14 plan. Internal Audit reviews 
reported to your sub-committee since the previous update report in June 2013 
have not revealed any significant control issues. Some areas of improvement 
have, however, been identified warranting prompt action, for instance, the 
introduction of disaster recovery planning scenarios and improvements to the 
evidence supporting income reconciliations.  

Page 19



 
52. Due to Internal Audit resourcing issue, including the retirement of a Senior 

Auditor and the need to undertake higher priority un-planned projects, some 
less priority work has been deferred. It should be noted that the Barbican Centre 
has received a high level of audit coverage over the period 2012/13 and 
2013/14 to date, with no significant control issues being identified. Given the low 
risk involved in reducing audit coverage for the remainder of this year, it has 
been necessary to divert resources to other higher risk areas of the overall City 
control environment. Additional permanent and interim internal audit resources 
are being recruited to ensure a good internal audit coverage is maintained.     

 
   
Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 – Schedule of Internal Audit Planned Work 2012/13 

• Appendix 2 -  Schedule of Internal Audit Planned Work 2013/14 

•  

Contact: Jeremy Mullins, Audit Manager 
T: 020 7332 1279 
E: Jeremy.mullins@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

Page 20



Appendix 1 
Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2012/13 

 
 

 Recommendations  

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 

Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Retail Outlets 
 
The Barbican Centre has a number of 
retail outlets and has recently taken back 
in-house the management of the 
bookshop. The procurement, pricing, 
stock control, and income collection and 
banking controls will be examined. 
 
 
 
 

25 30th June 
2012 

Completed - 4 2 6 

Stocks and Stores 
 
There are a number of stores operating 
across the Centre, for example set and 
scenery materials, technical equipment, 
and tools and machinery. This review will 
examine the arrangements for the 
purchase, recording, security and 
disposal of items held within stores. It will 
also consider how appropriate  the 
current level of stocks are, given the 
Centre's level of activity. 

20 31st March 
2013 

Completed - - 17 17 

P
age 21



 Recommendations 

Box Offices Process 
 
The Box Office is the event booking and 
ticketing outlet for the Barbican Centre 
catering for on-line, telephone and face-
to-face customers. The collection and 
recording of income will be reviewed, as 
well as controls over complimentary and 
refunded tickets. This review will not 
examine e-ticketing or the software 
application which it is planned to review 
separately. 

10 31st 
December 

2012 

Completed - - 3 3 

Annual IS Strategy & Security 
 
"This being an annual review as 
requested by the Barbican Committee 
following the 2011/12 review. The 
objectives of the audit exercise are to 
establish and assess: -  
• Adequacy of the strategy in providing 
the operational service required. 
• Responsibility to ensure that tasks have 
been properly assigned.             
• Configuration to ensure it provides a 
sound operational and secure setting. 
•  Logical access controls to ensure a 
secure management frameworks. 
•  Operational and housekeeping 
procedures 
• Resilience. 
 

10 30th June 
2013 

Completed  0 3 3 6 

P
age 22



 Recommendations 

E-commerce – Box Office Application 
(ENTA) 
 
Standard application/system review, 
objectives being to establishing and 
evaluating the strategy, responsibility, 
logical security, physical & environmental 
controls, housekeeping and resilience. 
 

10 31st March 
2013 

Completed 0 0 0 0 

Business Continuity (Including disaster 
recovery) 
 
Will assess Barbican DR plans being 
based on Barbican strategic objectives 
and stated need compared to benchmark 
leading practice. 

15 30th June 
2013 

Draft Report 
issued 

0 1 10 11 

Projects – Cost Monitoring 
 
This review will examine the Barbican 
Centre’s procedures for monitoring and 
control of the cost of projects, the 
process of updating of budgets and cost 
reports, and the governance 
arrangements in place to ensure 
adequate reporting and authorisation of 
cost overruns.  
 

15 31st 
December 

2012 

Completed - - 3 3 

 

P
age 23



P
age 24

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2013/14 
 

 Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 

Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

 
Value Framework 
 
Assessment of the process, methodology 
and software employed to measure 
customer satisfaction with event 
programming. 
 

 
15 

 
31st March 

2014 

 
Not started 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
Business Events (Target Setting and 
Income) 
 
Examination of the controls exercised 
when setting income targets and 
managing performance against income 
budgets. 
 

 
10 

 
Deferred 

 
Not started 

    

 
Barbican Centre – International Enterprise 
 
The activities of this initiative will be 
examined with emphasis on governance, 
operational controls and measurement of 
outcomes. 

 
10 

 
31st March 

2014 

 
Not started 

    

P
age 25



 Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 

Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

 
 

Variation Orders and Change Control 
Procedures (Barbican Centre) 
 
This review will examine the method by 
which project variations are notified, 
authorised and controlled, and the 
effectiveness of change control reporting 
arrangements. 
 

 
 
20 

 
 

31st March 
2014 

 
 

Not started 

    

 
CSA - Interim Valuations (Barbican 
Centre) 
 
This review will use Certified Self-
Assessment to consider the level of 
compliance with contractual requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
15 

 
31st March 

2014 

 
Deferred 

    

P
age 26



 Recommendations 

Project Planned 
Days 

Planned 
Completion 

Date 

Current 
Stage 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Spot Check Reviews 
 
Debt Management (including CBIS AR) 
 
Probity check of debt levels and recovery 
action. 
 

 
 
5 

 
 

31st 
December 

2013 

 
 

Not started 

    

 
Expense Claims (including staff 
hospitality) 
 
Probity check of a sample of claims 
submitted by staff. 
 

 
5 

 
31st 

December 
2014 

 
Fieldwork 

    

 
Cash Security (Petty Cash/Floats/Safes) 
 
Probity check of cash holdings against 
agreed sums and security arrangement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5 

 
30th June 
2014 

 
Completed 

 
0 

 
2 

 
0 

 
2 

P
age 27



Follow-up reviews 

Project Follow-up 
Date 

Recommendations Made Recommendations Implemented 

  Red Amber Green Total Red  Amber Green Total Outstanding 

Income Collection & 
Banking (all sources) 

TBA 0 0 2 2      

Retail Outlets TBA 0 4 2 6      

Commercial Income & 
Expenditure (inc. Artifax) 

TBA 0 0 4 4      

Stocks and Stores TBA 0 0 17 17      

Box Office Processes TBA 0 0 3 3      

Cost Monitoring TBA 0 0 3 3      

Annual IS Security & 
Strategy 

TBA 0 3 3 6      

 

P
age 28



Agenda Item 9

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 41

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 92

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	5 Internal Audit Update
	14th October 2013 update report  Appendix 1
	14th October  2013 update report  Appendix 2

	9 Non Public Minutes
	10 Risk Register Update
	Risk Register 03 Oct 2013

	11 Ticketing Update

